Morena Corridor Specific Plan



July 2019



This page is intentionally left blank.

Morena Corridor Specific Plan

July 2019

Prepared by:



With contributions from:





Adoption of Morena Corridor Specific Plan

	DATE APPROVED BY PLANNING COMMISSION	REPORT NUMBER	DATE ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL	ORDINANCE NUMBER
Morena Corridor Specific Plan	2/21/19	PC-19-008	9/10/19	0-21122

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

MAYOR

Kevin Faulconer

CITY ATTORNEY

Mara Elliott, City Attorney Corrine Neuffer, Deputy City Attorney

CITY COUNCIL

Barbara Bry, District 1 Jennifer Campbell, District 2 Chris Ward, District 3 Monica Montgomery, District 4 Mark Kersey, District 5 Chris Cate, District 6 Scott Sherman, District 7 Vivian Moreno, District 8 Georgette Gomez, District 9

PLANNING COMMISSION

Stephen Haase, Chairperson Susan Peerson, Vice Chairperson Douglas Austin William Hofman Vickie Granowitz Dennis Otsuji James Whalen

CITY STAFF

Mike Hansen, Director Tom Tomlinson, Assistant Director Laura C. Black, AICP, Deputy Director Alyssa Muto, Deputy Director Tait Galloway, Program Manager Michael Prinz, Senior Planner/Project Manager George Ghossain, Senior Traffic Engineer Samir Hajjiri, Senior Traffic Engineer Raynard Abalos, Program Manager Robin Shifflet, Development Project Manager Rebecca Malone, Senior Planner Claudia Brizuela, Associate Traffic Engineer Vickie White, Senior Planner Elizabeth Ocampo Vivero, Senior Planner Bernie Turgeon, Senior Planner Sara Osborn, Senior Planner Pedro Valera, Assistant Traffic Engineer Meghan Cedeno, Assistant Traffic Engineer Michael Klein, Information System Analyst Leo DeJesus, Mapping Technician

CLAIREMONT COMMUNITY PLANNING GROUP SUBCOMMITTEE

Margaret Schmidt, Chair Lynne Adams Naveen Waney Cece Frank Harry Backer Dave Potter James LaMattery John Shannon Carol Schleisman

LINDA VISTA PLANNING GROUP SUBCOMMITTEE

Howard Wayne, Chair Margarita Castro Kimberly Weber Rolando Ogot Virgina Mergener



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1 Introduction	1
1.1 - Overview	
1.2 - Vision	
1.3 - Guiding Principles	2
1.4 - Specific Plan Area	3
1.5 - Relationship to Other Planning Documents	3
1.6 - Planning Process	5

Chapter 2 Land Use	7
2.1 - Land Use Designations	7
2.2 - Planning Districts	
2.3 - Tecolote Village District	
2.4 - Morena Village District	
2.5 - Employment District	
2.6 - Design District	23
2.7 - Clairemont District	
2.8 - Seismic Hazards	25

Chapter 3 Mobility	27
3.1 - Mobility Policies	
3.2 - Mobility Improvements	
3.3 - Walkability	40
3.4 - Bicycling	41
3.5 - Transit Service	43
3.6 - Vehicular Mobility	43

Chapter 4 Urban Design	
4.1 - Urban Design Framework	47
4.2 - Streetscape and Public Realm	
4.3 - Branding and Gateways	54
4.4 - Development Design	57



4.5 - Sustainable Design	61
5 Recreation	63
5.1 - Park Opportunities	63
6 Conservation	65
6.1 - Sustainable Development	65
6.2 - Urban Runoff Management	69
7 Infrastructure Public Facilities and Services	71
7.1 - Water	71
7.2 - Wastewater	72
7.3 - Stormwater	
7.4 - Dry Utilities	
7.5 - Public Facilities	73
8 Implementation	75
8.1 - Purpose	75
8.2 - Severability	
8.3 - Administration	
8.4 - Environmental Review	
8.5 - Land Development Code	
8.6 - Supplemental Development Regulations	
8.7 - Affordable Housing Density Bonus Regulations	
8.8 - Specific Plan Amendments	
8.9 - Implementation Action Plan	81



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1-1 - Location of Specific Plan Area	5
Figure 2-1 - Specific Plan Land Use Map	9
Figure 2-2 - Planning Districts	14
Figure 2-3 - Tecolote Village District	
Figure 2-4 - Illustrative Site Plan of Tecolote Village District	17
Figure 2-5 - Upper-Story Stepbacks from Street	18
Figure 2-6 - Morena Village District	
Figure 2-7 - Illustrative of Example Development in Morena Village District	22
Figure 2-8 - Employment District	23
Figure 2-9 - Artisan District	24
Figure 2-10 - Clairemont District	
Figure 3-1 - Illustrative of Future Streets in Linda Vista	27
Figure 3-2 - Location of Proposed Mobility Network Improvements	
Figure 3-3 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 1	
Figure 3-4 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 2	30
Figure 3-5 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 3	31
Figure 3-6 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 4	
Figure 3-7 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 5	
Figure 3-8 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 6	32
Figure 3-9 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 7	33
Figure 3-10 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 8	
Figure 3-11 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 8	34
Figure 3-12 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 9	
Figure 3-13 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 10	
Figure 3-14 - Proposed Conceptual Design for Improvements 11-14	
Figure 3-15 - Proposed Location for Improvement 15	37
Figure 3-16 - Proposed Location for Improvements 16 & 17	
Figure 3-17 - Existing and Planned Bicycle Facilities	41
Figure 3-18 - Existing Functional Roadway Classifications	
Figure 3-19 - Future Functional Roadway Classifications	44
Figure 4-1 - Urban Design Framework Map	
Figure 4-2 - Conceptual Gateway Sign Locations	
Figure 5-1 - Illustrative Drawing of Tecolote Linear Park in Artisan District	
Figure 8-1 - Morena Corridor Districts Map	
Figure 8-2 - Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program Map	79

LIST OF TABLES

Table 2-1 - Morena Corridor Potential Build-Out	8
Table 2-2 - Land Use Designations	10
Table 8-1 - Summary of Mobility Improvements	82



1 |Introduction

1.1. OVERVIEW

The Morena Corridor Specific Plan (Specific Plan) envisions the transformation of an auto-oriented commercial corridor into a pedestrian-oriented village with employment areas, retail, and residential uses linked by pedestrian and bicycle facilities adjacent to the Tecolote and Morena/Linda Vista trolley stations in the Linda Vista community. The Specific Plan implements the goals of the City's General Plan and Climate Action Plan (CAP) by increasing employment and housing opportunities near transit, promoting walking and bicycle use as viable travel choices, and improving transit access and frequency.

The Specific Plan contains policies and supplemental development regulations for development within the Specific Plan area, which is located on the western edge of the communities of Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista. Properties located within Clairemont Mesa are not subject to the Specific Plan supplemental development regulations in the Implementation Chapter. The Specific Plan maintains the Clairemont Mesa Height Limit Overlay Zone. The policies provide direction on the qualitative aspects of development and the flexibility necessary to encourage creative design. Photographs depict concepts related to building elements and site design rather than a specific architectural theme or style. The Specific Plan identifies mobility, streetscape and public realm improvements, and facility recommendations.

The City prepared a previous planning study of the areas adjacent to the future trolley stations at Tecolote Road and Clairemont Drive and the existing Morena/Linda Vista trolley station. The planning study included recommendations to focus development within the station areas; identified a modified grid network within Linda Vista; and identified additional mobility improvements that would enhance access and safety for bicyclists, pedestrians, vehicles, and transit users. The Specific Plan builds upon and refines the technical analyses, recommendations, and public input from the prior planning study.

1.2. VISION

Enhance the Morena Corridor as a mixed-use village that has a vibrant community core with strong restaurant/retail/design district components and gathering places, balanced residential density that includes affordable housing, quality urban design, safe and accessible travel for all modes, employment opportunities, supporting infrastructure, and public amenities.



1.3. GUIDING PRINCIPLES

- Protect and enhance the Morena Corridor's unique neighborhood character.
- Ensure that new development respects general mass, volume, and scale of the existing built environment.
- Improve visual quality along Morena Boulevard.
- Preserve public views of Mission Bay.
- Establish a varied and balanced mix of uses.
- Encourage the preservation of existing restaurants and the development of new restaurants along the Morena Corridor.
- Provide a range of housing options.
- Integrate new uses that complement the existing neighborhood character.
- Improve the Morena Corridor as a place of services, shopping, and small business with a design district theme.
- Create additional gathering and recreational open space opportunities.
- Improve mobility for all modes of transportation.
- Ensure safe and efficient travel for pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicles.
- Improve access to Mission Bay Park.
- Celebrate community history that dates back to the turn of the 20th century.
- Maximize sustainable development.

1.4. SPECIFIC PLAN AREA

The Specific Plan area is approximately 280 acres along Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard between Clairemont Drive and Friars Road. This area is within the Clairemont Mesa Community Plan Area and the Linda Vista Community Plan Area, as shown on Figure 1-1.

The Specific Plan is located in the low-lying area north of the San Diego River generally 7 feet above sea level, east of Mission Bay, south of Clairemont Drive, and west of the rolling hills and canyons that define the surrounding neighborhoods in Linda Vista and Clairemont Mesa. These neighborhoods, known as Bay Park and Overlook Heights, are situated in the hills above the Specific Plan area that climb to an elevation of approximately 200 feet above sea level.

To the west, the Specific Plan area is bounded by the railroad right-of-way and Interstate 5 (I-5). To the north and east, the Specific Plan area is shaped by the sloping topography and cohesive single-family residential neighborhoods in Clairemont Mesa; the University of San Diego (USD); and multifamily and student housing in Linda Vista. To the south is the San Diego River and Interstate 8 (I-8), which separate the Specific Plan area from Old Town San Diego and Mission Valley.

The San Diego Trolley connects Downtown San Diego to the University of California, San Diego and University Towne Center along the west side of Morena Boulevard. The Specific Plan area includes the Morena/Linda Vista Trolley Station at Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road, the Tecolote Trolley Station at West Morena Boulevard and Tecolote Road, and the Clairemont Drive Trolley Station at Morena Boulevard and Clairemont Drive, as shown on Figure 1-1.

1.5. RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER PLANNING DOCUMENTS

General Plan

The General Plan expresses a Citywide vision and provides a comprehensive policy framework for how the City should grow and develop. The Specific Plan furthers the goals and policies of the General Plan by providing detailed criteria for development of a mixed-use "village" as part of the "City of Villages Strategy." The Specific Plan conforms with the General Plan and guides land use, circulation, and infrastructure improvements in the Specific Plan area.

Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista Community Plans

The Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista Community Plans are part of the Land Use Element of the General Plan. Community plans provide more detailed land use designations than the General Plan and provide community-specific policy recommendations. The community plans also provide the basis for zoning. The General Plan and community plans work together to establish the framework for growth and development.





Figure 1-1 - Location of Specific Plan Area



Climate Action Plan (CAP)

The CAP is intended to ensure the City achieves State mandates for greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions through local action. The CAP identifies five primary strategies implemented by a number of actions to meet the GHG reduction target for 2020 as well as an interim target set for 2035 that is on the trajectory to a 2050 statewide goal. One of the five primary strategies identified in the CAP is to implement mobility and land use strategies that promote increased capacity for transit-supportive residential and employment densities and provide more walking and biking opportunities. These concepts are consistent with the General Plan and include a focus on increased capacity in Transit Priority Areas (TPAs); areas within one-half mile from a major transit stop. Portions of the Specific Plan area are within a TPA. The Specific Plan increases housing and employment adjacent to the trolley stations and provides mobility recommendations to improve pedestrian and bicycle connectivity consistent with the CAP land use and mobility strategies.

Morena Corridor Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report

The Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Morena Corridor is a comprehensive assessment of the environmental effects that could result from implementation of the proposed Specific Plan. The EIR for the Specific Plan complies with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In addition to addressing potential impacts related to community concerns such as aesthetics, air quality, traffic, and infrastructure, the EIR identifies mitigation to reduce or avoid significant impacts.

1.6. PLANNING PROCESS

The Specific Plan has been developed through a community outreach process that included online and in-person forums. Specifically, the public outreach for the Specific Plan was primarily conducted through the Morena Corridor subcommittees of the Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista Community Planning Groups. The community outreach was a collaborative process between community members and the City, with the participation strategy designed to:

- Provide multiple venues for participation.
- Solicit input, ideas, and feedback.
- Share process information.
- Report to the community planning group on decisions made at key stages of the planning process.
- Engage the diversity of people, perspectives, and priorities in the Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista communities.





For illustrative purposes only. Conceptual rendering of potential development and public space with the Tecolote Village and Morena Station. districts.

2 |Land Use and Districts

LAND USE AND DISTRICTS GOALS

- A distinct identity through a cohesive mix of uses.
- A diverse mix of land uses surrounding the transit stations.
- Connections to transit through a modified grid street network.
- Economic vitality through a mix of employment uses.
- A vibrant retail and restaurant sector.

The land use chapter establishes land use and districts to guide development and integrate a mix of uses, primarily focused around nodes of activity, to promote a thriving, mixed-use environment.

2.1. LAND USE DESIGNATIONS

Table 2-1 shows potential buildout within the Specific Plan area.

The land uses and residential intensities are illustrated on the Land Use Map (Figure 2-1). The Land Use Map provides a general guide to land use distribution and illustrates allocation of residential density.

Table 2-2, beginning on page 9, summarizes and describes the Land Use Designations within the Morena Corridor.

Table 2-1 - Morena Corridor Potential Build-Out

	Existing 2010	Build Out	
Residential Development (Number of Dwelling Units)			
Single-Family	27	18	
Multi-Family	969	6,898	
Total Residential	996	7,016	
Non-Residential Development (Floor Area Square Footage)*			
Commercial, Employment, Retail & Services	2,990,000	2,535,000	
Institutional	150,000	150,000	
Total Non-Residential	3,140,000	2,685,000	

*Square footages reflect rounded estimations.





Figure 2-1 - Specific Plan Land Use Map



Table 2-2 - Land Use Designations

Residential - Low (5-9 DU / AC)

Provides for single family housing within a low density.



Residential - Medium (15-29 DU / AC)

Provides for a range of multifamily housing such as duplex, triplex, four-plex, townhomes, and apartments that range between 2 and 3 stories.



Residential - Medium High (30-44 DU / AC)

Provides for multifamily housing within a mediumhigh density range of 30-44 du/ac, including condominiums, town homes, apartments, row homes, senior housing, and assisted care units. Limited commercial uses are allowed but not required.





Mobile Home Park

Provides for mobilehome park sites.



Neighborhood Commercial - Residential Permitted (15-29 DU / AC)

Provides for a mix of local serving retail, dining, convenience shopping, office, and civic uses with auto orientation and residential uses.



General/Community Commercial- Residential Permitted (15-29 DU / AC)

Provides for high-intensity commercial uses and residential uses in a mixed-use setting with a pedestrian orientation.

This land use designation is identified as General Commercial in Clairemont Mesa and Community Commercial in Linda Vista.





Community Commercial (15-54 DU/AC)

Provides for high-intensity commercial uses and residential uses in a mixed-use setting with a pedestrian orientation.



Community Village (0-54 DU/AC)* - Morena Station District

Provides for a high-density mix of retail, service, dining, and office commercial uses as well as civic, institutional, and multifamily residential uses in a mixed-use setting.

*Residential density up to 73 DU/AC allowed through a public review and decision process via a Planned Development Permit. Please refer to Chapter 8.



Community Village (0-54 DU/AC)* - Tecolote Village District

Provides for a high-density mix of retail, service, dining, and office commercial uses as well as civic, institutional, and multifamily residential uses.

*Residential density up to 109 DU/AC allowed through a public review and decision process via a Planned Development Permit. Please refer to Chapter 8.





Light Industrial

Provides for a mix of light industrial, commercial, including small manufacturing, creative design, and production, such as food and beverage, apparel, design, furniture, and custom or small run manufacturing. Industrial or flexible building types are appropriate and should match the scale of adjacent residential uses.



Institutional

Includes community and institutional facilities for education, community centers, police and fire protection, health care, and public utilities.



Population Based Parks

Provides for areas designated for passive and/or active recreational uses. Allows for facilities and services to meet the recreational needs of the community.





2.2. PLANNING DISTRICTS

The Specific Plan area consists of five planning districts, as shown in Figure 2-2. Each planning district includes a vision and policies that address the form and character envisioned for each area. The Implementation Chapter contains supplemental development regulations for the Tecolote Village District and the Morena Station District.



Figure 2-2 - Planning Districts



2.3. TECOLOTE VILLAGE DISTRICT

The Specific Plan envisions the establishment of a community village as a vibrant, pedestrian- and transit-oriented entertainment area adjacent to the Tecolote Trolley Station (see Figure 2-3). The village will incorporate a mix of commercial, residential, public space and civic uses to activate the area. The West Morena Boulevard streetscape will create an inviting gateway to the village. The Tecolote Transit Station will be integrated into the village to create a strong transit link to serve employees and residents.

The integration of residential, retail, office, entertainment, and civic uses will provide activity and vitality to the village. Public and private streets and pedestrian and bicycle paths will break up the existing superblock to create a walkable block pattern while improving multimodal access to the transit center and adjacent districts. Both West Morena and a primary village entrance street can provide neighborhood design elements with pedestrian-oriented retail uses for shopping and dining, and spaces for social interaction and gathering. Public parks, plazas, or urban greens in the village will provide active and passive recreation opportunities. Refer to the Mobility, Urban Design, and Recreation Chapters for further direction.

Figure 2-3 - Tecolote Village District



Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program

The Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Enhancement Program can be utilized within the Tecolote Village District, which is designated Community Village (54 DU/AC) as shown on the Specific Plan Land Use Map, Figure 2-1. The intent of the TOD Enhancement Program is to allow for increased residential density to create TOD that supports the implementation of the CAP and implements the Mobility and Urban Design policies of the Specific Plan. The TOD Enhancement Program allows for the density range for this area to be increased up to 109 dwelling units per acre through a discretionary review process. The Program also allows for structure heights up to 100 feet and a maximum floor area ratio of 5.0 through a public review and decision processes outlined in the Implementation Chapter. A project using the TOD Enhancement Program must be consistent with the Specific Plan Urban Design and Mobility policies and conform with the supplemental development regulations outlined in the Implementation Chapter.



Policies

Land Use

- **2.3.1.** Establish a pedestrian- and transit-oriented development integrated with the Tecolote Transit Station to create a vibrant community village.
- **2.3.2.** Provide a mix of entertainment, office, retail, residential, recreational, public, and park uses.
- **2.3.3.** Provide a range of housing opportunities, types, and affordability.
- **2.3.4.** Encourage the inclusion of on-site affordable housing units in residential development.
- **2.3.5.** Provide a mix of service, retail, office, and entertainment uses to support residential uses and attract visitors and employment to the district.

<u>Mobility</u>

- **2.3.6.** Incorporate a primary village entrance street or drive from West Morena Boulevard with pedestrian-oriented ground floor retail uses.
- **2.3.7.** Incorporate new public streets or private drives with pedestrian and bicycle facilities to create a walkable scale for development.
- **2.3.8.** Provide a system of interconnected pedestrian paths, paseos, and sidewalks to provide enhanced connectivity to adjacent buildings and public space.
- **2.3.9.** Support the use of shared structured parking between uses.

Public Space/Recreation

2.3.10. Provide a population-based park component to serve the needs of residential uses located within the village, which can include a mini park, plazas, or urban greens for active as well as passive recreation.





<u>Urban Design</u>

- 2.3.11. Orient buildings along compact blocks that are delineated on all sides by public streets, private drives, or pedestrian paseos to create a grid circulation pattern.
- **2.3.12.** Design blocks to be pedestrian-oriented by limiting the total perimeter to 1,500 feet, where feasible.
- 2.3.13. Establish a grid pattern by aligning public streets or private drives with Vega, Dorcas, and Buenos Avenues at West Morena Boulevard (See Figure 2-4 for illustration).
- **2.3.14.** Locate ground floor active frontages with pedestrianoriented uses along West Morena Boulevard to activate the street and public spaces.



Non-contiguous sidewalks provide attractive and safe connections and promote walkability.



Figure 2-4 - Illustrative Site Plan of Tecolote Village District

For illustrative purposes only. Future development has the flexibility to design the site layout consistent with the Tecolote Village District policies in this section.

- **2.3.15.** Provide a public space such as a plaza or urban green that serves as a focal point for the village area.
- 2.3.16. Provide pedestrian plazas, within the village or at building street corners, where possible, to help activate street corners and to complement fronting uses.
- **2.3.17.** Provide seating areas located along or adjacent to pedestrian paths and public spaces.
- 2.3.18. Employ a combination of setbacks, upper-story stepbacks, and articulated sub-volumes to reduce the perceived scale of buildings fronting West Morena Boulevard (see Figure 2-5).

Figure 2-5 - Upper-Story Stepbacks from Street



For illustrative purposes only.



For illustrative purposes only. Future development has the flexibility to design the site layout consistent with the Tecolote Village District policies in this section.



2.4. MORENA STATION DISTRICT

The Specific Plan envisions the establishment of a community village near the Morena/Linda Vista Transit Station as a thriving location for people who want to live in an active, compact and connected urban environment. The Morena Station District is adjacent to the University of San Diego.

The District will include the extensions of Morena Boulevard and Sherman Street to complete the grid network - establishing a street system that encourages a pedestrian scale, and walkable development pattern as shown in Figure 3-1. The district grid network will improve mobility for all modes of transportation and support a mix of housing types, retail, commercial, and office uses. Office, flex and innovation space will support and complement the University of San Diego. The Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road streetscapes will create inviting gateways to the village. Pedestrian and bicycle linkages will create a strong transit link to the Morena/ Linda Vista Trolley Station to serve employees, students, faculty of USD and residents.

Plazas or urban greens will function as focal points within the village by providing social and recreation opportunities for residents, employees, and students. Pedestrian and bicycle access to Friars Road will connect the village to the San Diego River and Mission Bay Park. New

Figure 2-6 - Morena Station District





streets in conjunction with pedestrian and bicycle paths will provide a pedestrian-scaled framework for development, and improve public north-south connections. Buildings will front onto streets, pedestrian paths, and public spaces and incorporate active street-level uses to encourage pedestrian activity. Refer to the Urban Design Chapter for policies regarding public space and development design.

Refer to the Mobility, Urban Design, and Recreation Chapters for additional discussion and policies addressing planned improvements.



Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Enhancement Program

The Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Enhancement Program can be utilized within the Morena Station District, which is designated Community Village (54 DU/ AC) as shown on the Specific Plan Land Use Map, Figure 2-1. The intent of the TOD Enhancement Program is to allow for increased residential density to create transitoriented development that supports the implementation of the CAP and implements the Mobility and Urban Design policies of the Specific Plan.

The TOD Enhancement Program allows for the density range for this area to be increased up to 73 dwelling units per acre through a discretionary review process. The Program allows for structure heights up to 65 feet and a maximum floor area ratio of 4.5 through a public review and decision process. The Program also allows for the calculation of residential density based on gross site area, including any dedication of right-of-way (see Implementation Chapter for further detail). A project using the TOD Enhancement Program must be consistent with the Specific Plan Urban Design and Mobility policies and conform with the supplemental development regulations outlined in the Implementation Chapter.

Policies

<u>Land Uses</u>

- **2.4.1.** Develop a mixed-use, pedestrian-oriented district supported by a grid network of public streets.
- **2.4.2.** Provide a mix of entertainment, office, retail, residential, recreational, public, and park uses.
- **2.4.3.** Provide a variety of housing types that meet the needs of all age, income, and social groups.
- **2.4.4.** Encourage the inclusion of on-site affordable housing units in residential development.



Mixed-use villages will incorporate housing, public spaces, jobs, and services in proximity to transit.



Clearly defined pedestrian paths help create a functional and attractive pedestrian environment.



Pedestrian-oriented public spaces in villages will enhance the public realm.









Active frontages with entrances facing the street or public plaza space encourage pedestrian activity.

<u>Mobility</u>

- 2.4.5. Connect Morena Boulevard and Sherman Street within the Morena Village District to establish a grid network that enhances multi-modal connectivity.
- 2.4.6. Complete the roadway extensions through potential acquisition or dedication of right-of-way. The acquisition of necessary right-of-way from affected property owners could include a transfer of City-owned right-of-way that would be vacated through the process.
- 2.4.7. Consider the vacation and sale of excess rightof-way not needed for circulation as part of development project approvals or use as public space, paseos, or linear parks.
- 2.4.8. Provide a system of interconnected pedestrian paths that connect to sidewalks to provide enhanced connectivity to the University of San Diego and the Morena Trolley Station.
- 2.4.9. Provide continuous, clearly marked walkways within development that connect across streets and drives with enhanced paving.
- **2.4.10.** Utilize shared structured parking serving multiple uses to efficiently meet the parking needs of the village.

Public Space/Recreation

- 2.4.11. Provide a population-based park component to serve the needs of residential uses located within the village which can include mini-parks, plazas or urban greens for active and passive recreation.
- 2.4.12. Increase public space and recreational opportunities by acquiring and developing land through right-of-way vacations, where appropriate, to provide areas for mini-parks and recreation uses.



Chapter 2 - Land Use

<u>Urban Design</u>

- **2.4.13.** Orient building entrances fronting public streets, while allowing for the incorporation of public plazas, public spaces, and other pedestrian amenities.
- **2.4.14.** Consider use of a combination of upper-story step-backs, articulated sub-volumes, and setbacks to transition buildings from Cushman Avenue to Linda Vista Road.
- **2.4.15.** Provide pedestrian plazas, where possible, to help activate street corners and to complement fronting uses.

Figure 2-7 - Illustrative Example of Development in Morena Village District



For illustrative purposes only. New streets with varying building massing that provide active commercial frontages and incorporate public space.



2.5. EMPLOYMENT DISTRICT

The Specific Plan envisions a range of urbanoriented light industrial, creative office/flex space business, and commercial uses that provide a sub-regional job center for smalland medium-size businesses adjacent to the transit centers consistent with the General Plan identification of this area as a Subregional Employment Area. Streetscape enhancements would improve walkability to the transit stations.

Policies

- 2.5.1. Support commercial, office, and light industrial employment uses to preserve and expand local and regional job opportunities and stimulate business growth and development.
- 2.5.2. Coordinate with SANDAG and the Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) to provide a pedestrian and bicycle connection from the Employment District to the Morena/Linda Vista Trolley Station.
- 2.5.3. Provide a pedestrian and bicycle connection from Buenos Avenue to the Tecolote Trolley Station as part of the Tecolote Village District.
- 2.5.4. Provide sidewalks along all public streets within the district when property develops. This could include the dedication of additional right-of-way where needed.
- **2.5.5.** Explore opportunities to provide linear park space along Friars Road.

Figure 2-8 - Employment District





2.6. DESIGN DISTRICT

The Specific Plan envisions a Design District as a location for design firms, distinct products, and specialty foods and beverages to cluster with similar businesses. The foundation for the district is the production of artisan goods, food, and beverages with wholesale and retail sales supported through tasting rooms, show rooms, galleries, shops, and eateries as a commercial node along Morena Boulevard. The Tecolote Linear Park (addressed in Recreation) would provide passive recreational space, serving as a defining feature of the district.

Policies

- 2.6.1. Encourage local businesses to create a design district through branding, identity, wayfinding signage, and improvements to the public realm.
- 2.6.2. Create a distinct place that allows for a thriving district that supports artisan and incubator businesses offering a variety of goods and services.
- 2.6.3. Encourage artisan and craft businesses that produce goods, food, and beverages.
- 2.6.4. Support the consolidation of lots to allow for larger buildings, yet maintain the appearance of smaller buildings with the use of facade modulation.

Figure 2-9 - Design District



- a. Incorporate setbacks, recesses or projections above the ground floor to create vertical rhythm.
- **b**. Encourage irregularity of vertical rhythm to achieve greater diversity.
- c. Encourage the use of different materials and openings along the façade planes.
- **2.6.5.** Support the development of the Tecolote Linear Park as a defining urban design feature that provides passive recreational opportunities (also see the Recreation Chapter).
- **2.6.6.** Design buildings fronting the linear park to help define the park area as an urban public space with ground floor interface.



2.7. CLAIREMONT DISTRICT

The Specific Plan envisions the Clairemont District as an expansion of commercial nodes of pedestrian activity along Morena Boulevard primarily between Ashton Street and Napier Street—that includes restaurants and stores to further create a neighborhood village-like setting to serve residents and visitors.

Mobility connections to the Clairemont Drive Trolley Station and to Mission Bay will encourage pedestrian and bicycle activity and activate the street.

Policies

- 2.7.1. Support expansion of restaurant and retail store uses in the "village core" between Ashton Street and Napier Street.
- 2.7.2. Implement a complete street multimodal design for Morena Boulevard that provides safe and accessible travel for bicycles and pedestrians while maintaining traffic flow.
- 2.7.3. Design buildings with active frontage elements such as enhanced windows, storefront treatments, and public spaces that front on Morena Boulevard to enliven the streetscape.

Figure 2-10 - Clairemont District





2.8. SEISMIC HAZARDS

Surface Fault Rupture

Much of the Morena Corridor Specific Plan area is located within or adjacent to the northwest trending Rose Canyon fault zone. The fault zone is characterized by anastomosing and en echelon fault strands, which likely could present a surface fault rupture hazard. While the zone of faulting is relatively well defined on a regional scale, the precise location and activity of the fault strands within the zone are less defined in the area of the Morena Corridor. Several fault strands have been tentatively located by interpretation of geomorphic features from aerial photographs and these faults are shown on the San Diego Seismic Safety Study Geologic Hazards and Faults Mapsⁱ. Detailed geologic studies are necessary to precisely locate faults and determine fault activity within the broader fault zone.

¹ City of San Diego Seismic Safety Study, Geologic Hazards and Faults Updated 2008: http://archive.sandiego.gov/development-services/industry/ hazards/pdf/seismicstudy.pdf





For illustrative purposes only. Conceptual rendering of proposed West Morena Boulevard improvements.



3 | Mobility

MOBILITY GOALS

- Promote community connection, access, and ease of travel by prioritization of multi-modal roadways designed and operated to enable safe, attractive, and comfortable travel for all users.
- Improve mobility for all modes of transportation.
- Implement long-term roadway improvements including restoration of a grid-network through new roadways.
- Provide adequate parking for all new development.
- Ensure safe and efficient travel for pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicles.
- · Improve access to Mission Bay Park.

3.1. MOBILITY POLICIES

The Mobility Chapter provides recommendations for a complete streets network by providing multimodal benefits that would improve the safety, comfort, and operations of pedestrians, bicyclists, transit riders, and motorists. Significant mobility improvements include the extensions of roadways that establish a grid network in the Linda Vista community as illustrated in Figure 3-1 and shown in Figure 3-2. The roadway extensions are provided through potential acquisition or dedication of rightof-way. The locations shown in the Specific Plan are for illustrative purposes. The exact location and design of the roadway extensions would be subject to further engineering analysis to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.



July 2019

Policies

- **3.1.1.** Implement street right-of-way extensions or vacations identified in Section 3.2 as part of the development review process following the public right-of-way vacation and subdivision procedures established in the Land Development Code.
 - a. In addition to all noticing procedures in the Land Development Code, consult with adjacent property owners with property located within or directly adjacent to the right-of-way extension or vacation to inform and obtain input.
 - **b.** Identify mechanisms for addressing phasing for right-of-way shared by other property owners to maintain access until the adjacent properties redevelop.
- **3.1.2.** Evaluate access to affected property owners abutting Napa Street between West Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road prior to implementation of any public right-of-way vacation.
- **3.1.3.** Maintain multi-modal access to properties affected by street vacations through the implementation of the Specific Plan recommendations.
- **3.1.4.** Consider the use of public access easements for bicycle/pedestrian paths to village areas along Napa Street, if utility easements remain.



Figure 3-1 - Illustrative of Future Streets in Linda Vista

The location shown for new public streets or private driveways is conceptual. The exact location for new street alignments would need to be addressed during the development review process for projects within the Morena Station District.








July 2019

3.2. MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS

The mobility improvements benefit all modes of transportation by providing direct routes of travel and addressing safety through increased visibility. Figure 3-1 illustrates the proposed mobility improvements and Figure 3-2 identifies the locations of the proposed improvements. The street extensions and intersections should be designed consistent with the City's Street Design Manual for their respective classifications.



Improvement 1: Morena Boulevard/ West Morena Boulevard From Ingulf Street to Knoxville Street

The segment of Morena Boulevard/West Morena Boulevard is currently a four-lane major arterial with on-street parking along the east side and some areas of on-street parking along the west side.

- Provide two lanes southbound and two lanes northbound with left-turn pockets at intersections and a two-way cycle track along the west side of the roadway, as shown in Figure 3-3.
- Provide a mountable curb or flexible delineator separating the bike facility from the vehicular travel lane.
- Maintain parking along the east side of this segment. Where feasible, provide onstreet parking along the west side of the roadway.

Figure 3-3 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 1



Improvement 2: Intersection of Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard

- Reconfigure the 'Y' intersection at Morena Boulevard/West Morena Boulevard by squaring up the Morena Boulevard approach of the intersection to a standard "T" intersection as shown in Figure 3-4.
- Consider a roundabout at the intersection if deemed feasible within the right-of-way.

Figure 3-4 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 2





Roundabouts and other right-of-way improvements, such as those implemented in the Bird Rock area, could be considered to improve traffic flow while also calming traffic and creating a more comfortable and attractive environment for bicyclists and pedestrians.

In addition to the mobility improvements identified in this section, the following improvements are recommended to improve mobility within the Clairemont Mesa area:

- E. Mission Bay Drive and Clairemont Drive Signalize the intersection and restripe the northbound approach to include a dedicated right-turn lane. Subject to the approval of the City Engineer, a roundabout may be utilized in-lieu of signalization at this location.
- Morena Boulevard and Jellett Street Signalize the intersection. Subject to the approval of the City Engineer, a left-turn restriction may be utilized in-lieu of signalization at this location.
- Morena Boulevard and Savannah Street Signalize the intersection. Subject to the approval of the City Engineer, a left-turn restriction may be utilized in-lieu of signalization at this location.



Improvement 3: Knoxville Street Extension

• Extend the two-lane collector and create a new "T" intersection at Knoxville Street and West Morena Boulevard, as shown in Figure 3-5.



Figure 3-5 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 3

Improvement 4: West Morena Boulevard from Vega Street to Cushman Avenue Road Diet

The segment of West Morena Boulevard is currently a five-lane major arterial with on-street parking along the west side and some areas of on-street parking along the east side.

• Remove one southbound lane and maintain two northbound lanes with left-turn pockets at intersections and provide a two-way cycle track along the west side of the roadway, as shown in Figure 3-6.

Figure 3-6 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 4





Improvement 5: Morena Boulevard from Cushman Avenue to Linda Vista Road

• Reconfigure the buffered bike lanes to a two-way cycle track along the west side of the street, as shown in Figure 3-7.

Figure 3-7 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 5



Improvement 6: Intersection of Linda Vista Road and West Morena Boulevard

• Reconfigure intersection to allow more turning movements and pedestrian crossings, as shown in Figure 3-8.

Figure 3-8 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 6





Improvement 7: Cushman Avenue Extension towards West Morena Boulevard

• Extend Cushman Avenue to West Morena Boulevard and provide bike lanes along Cushman Avenue, as shown in Figure 3-9. This extension would improve mobility and help to reduce congestion by distributing traffic along Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard.



Figure 3-9 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 7



Improvement 8: Morena Boulevard Extension

- Extend Morena Boulevard to Linda Vista Road and continue bike lanes along the new segment of Morena Boulevard as shown in Figures 3-10 and 3-11. This roadway extension would improve mobility for all modes, by providing additional pedestrian and bicycle connections and would help redistribute traffic on the street system.
- Figure 3-10 shows the proposed cross section for the new Morena Boulevard extension.
- Figure 3-11 shows the conceptual design of the intersection of Morena Boulevard and Cushman Avenue.

Figure 3-10 - Proposed Cross Section for Improvement 8



Figure 3-11 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 8





Improvement 9: Intersection of Linda Vista Road and Morena Boulevard

• Figure 3-12 shows the conceptual design of the proposed Morena Boulevard extension and Linda Vista Road Intersection.

Figure 3-12 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 9



Improvement 10: Sherman Street Extension

- Extend Sherman Street to connect to the extension of Morena Boulevard as a two-lane collector (with a two-way left turn lane) to provide pedestrian and low speed bicycle connections.
- Figure 3-13 shows the conceptual design for the proposed West Morena Boulevard and Sherman Street intersection.

Figure 3-13 - Proposed Intersection Conceptual Design for Improvement 10





Improvement 11: Dorcas Street Extension

• Extend Dorcas Street so that it continues west of West Morena Boulevard and re-establishes street grid, as shown on Figure 3-14.

Improvement 12: New Street (Buenos Avenue to Vega Street)

- Create a new public street or private driveway parallel to West Morena Boulevard that is located on the west side of West Morena Boulevard that would extend from Buenos Avenue to Vega Street and intersect with the Dorcas Street extension, as shown on Figure 3-14.
- This improvement would be key in reintroducing and connecting the street grid on the west side of West Morena Boulevard.

Improvement 13: Vega Street Extension

• Extend Vega Street so that it continues south of West Morena Boulevard and re-establishes street grid, as shown on Figure 3-14.

Improvement 14: New Street or Private Driveway (Buenos Avenue to Dorcas Street)

• Create a one-block street segment between Buenos Avenue and Dorcas Street that is parallel to West Morena Boulevard and another new public street or private driveway (Improvement 12), as shown on Figure 3-14.



Figure 3-14 - Proposed Conceptual Design for Improvements 11-14



Improvement 15: Napa Street Vacation between Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road

Napa Street between Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road is a four-lane collector without onstreet parking or bicycle facilities.

- Vacate Napa Street between Morena Boulevard and Linda Vista Road as part of new development as shown on Figure 3-15.
- Implement improvement upon completion of the Morena Boulevard extension to Linda Vista Road (Improvement 8). There is currently not enough street width to provide bicycle facilities along this roadway without acquiring additional right-of-way. The close proximity of this street to Linda Vista Road and Morena Boulevard is currently causing congestion in this area due to high concentrations of traffic volumes in a small area. Improvement 8 would redistribute traffic and provide more distance between signalized intersections.



Figure 3-15 - Proposed Location for Improvement 15

Improvement 16: Morena Boulevard Vacation between West Morena Boulevard and Morena Place

- Vacate this segment of Morena Boulevard to allow for a two lane collector with a left turn lane consistent with the Street Design Manual and to help establish a street grid shown on Figure 3-16.
- Vacate Morena Boulevard between the extension of Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard. Cushman Avenue extension bisects this vacated segment.

Improvement 17: Metro Street Vacation

• Vacate Metro Street north of Linda Vista Road, if necessary, for future development within the Morena Station District, to minimize the number of full access intersections along Linda Vista Road, as shown on Figure 3-16.

Figure 3-16 - Proposed Location for Improvements 16 & 17



The location shown for new public streets or private driveways is conceptual. The exact location would need to be addressed during the development review process.



3.3. WALKABILITY

The recommended mobility network reconfiguration would re-establish a street grid network, benefiting pedestrian mobility. Street grids provide direct routes as well as alternative parallel routes that maximize connections.



Curb bulb-outs reduce the crossing distance for pedestrians and provided space for amenities such as bicycle parking, landscaping and street furniture.



Creating new complete street connections and improving existing streets to accommodate all modes of travel will help meet the community's travel demand.

Policies

- **3.3.1.** Consider pedestrian count down timers at signalized intersections, and lighting as part of the design of future streets.
- **3.3.2.** Incorporate high visibility "continental crosswalks" at signalized intersections.
- **3.3.3.** Consider the use of curb bulb-outs to minimize the pedestrian crossing distance, where feasible.
- **3.3.4.** Provide non-contiguous sidewalks where possible, with an emphasis on the roadways of Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard.
- **3.3.5.** Coordinate with SANDAG and MTS to improve pedestrian access to the transit stops/stations.



3.4. BICYCLING

The recommended mobility improvements would help improve bicycle mobility and access. Bicycle facilities would be included with the street network reconfiguration, the recommended bicycle network is displayed in Figure 3-17. The recommended two-way cycle track would provide an enhanced regional facility that would run along the west side of Morena Boulevard/West Morena Boulevard from Gesner Street to Linda Vista Road would improve bicyclist comfort and safety by providing a physically separated facility with limited interruptions from driveways and intersections.



Physically separated bicycle facilities provide comfort for users of all ages.



Buffered bicycle lanes place cyclists away from motorists and parked vehicles.

Policies

- 3.4.6. Coordinate with Caltrans to improve pedestrian and bicycle connections along the Clairemont Drive freeway bridge to provide access from the Clairemont and Linda Vista community to Mission Bay Park. This could include "squaring-up" the southbound Interstate-5 on- and offramps at Clairemont Drive/East Mission Bay Drive.
- 3.4.7. Coordinate with Caltrans and SANDAG to improve pedestrian and bicyclist mobility along the Clairemont Drive/East Mission Bay Drive bridge and the Sea World Drive/Tecolote Road bridge over I-5 to connect with existing bicycle facilities and to provide access to Fiesta Island.
- **3.4.8.** Provide accessible, secure and well-signed bicycle parking at convenient and visible locations throughout the Morena Corridor including, but not limited to, villages and commercial nodes.
- **3.4.9.** Coordinate with SANDAG and Caltrans to provide a pedestrian/bicycle bridge over I-5. The location of the bridge should improve access from the community and transit stations to Mission Bay Park.



Conceptual design of enhanced Class II bicycle facility along Clairemont Drive at the I-5 Overpass bridge, physical separation where feasible.



Figure 3-17 - Existing and Planned Bicycle Facilities



3.5. TRANSIT SERVICE

Public transit in the Specific Plan area includes trolley and bus routes operated by MTS. The San Diego Trolley Green Line provides service to Linda Vista/Morena Transit Station and operates between Santee and Downtown San Diego. The Blue Line provides service to the Tecolote and Clairemont Transit Stations and operates between the Downtown and University communities.

Policies

- **3.5.10.** Coordinate with MTS and SANDAG to provide bus stop waiting areas with shelters and next time bus information as improvements are implemented.
- **3.5.11.** Coordinate with MTS and SANDAG to provide a shuttle servicing key destination areas such as Mission Bay Park, Fiesta Island, and Sea World.
- **3.5.12.** Encourage the continuation of the shuttle from USD to the Old Town Transit Center.
- **3.5.13.** Encourage coordination between USD and MTS to provide a shuttle service to the Tecolote Station.

3.6. VEHICULAR MOBILITY

The street network reconfiguration would improve movement of vehicles throughout the Specific Plan area by increasing capacity and reducing congestion. The street grid pattern would increase connectivity, which allows for shorter travel distances and improves efficiency through the area. Figure 3-18 displays the existing (2018) functional street classifications, and Figure 3-19 displays the planned street network and classifications.

Policies

- **3.6.14.** Provide an interconnected grid street network between communities to enhance mobility for all modes while providing adequate capacity and reducing congestion on the street system.
- **3.6.15.** Consider installation of adaptive traffic signals along Morena Boulevard.
- **3.6.16.** Encourage infrastructure for electric vehicles, including vehicle charging stations for multifamily residential, commercial, and industrial uses based on future demand and changes in technology.
- **3.6.17.** Encourage the evaluation of infrastructure for autonomous vehicles when designing rightof-way infrastructure projects and operational improvements based on future demand and changes in technology.
- **3.6.18.** Consider the installation of roundabouts to minimize conflicts, reduce traffic speeds, and reduce fuel consumption, where feasible.





Figure 3-18 - Existing Functional Street Classifications (2018)





Figure 3-19 - Planned Street Classifications





Conceptual rendering of proposed Morena Boulevard extension.



4 | Urban Design

URBAN DESIGN GOALS

- A built environment that enhances quality of life and community character.
- New buildings that enhance the Morena Corridor's distinctive identity.
- Gateways that establish the Morena Corridor as a destination.
- A pedestrian oriented public realm with high aesthetic quality, functionality and sustainability.

4.1. URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK

Urban Design addresses the features and relationships of buildings, private and public spaces, and landscapes within the Specific Plan area. The relationship between public and private spaces, including roadway design, building design and architectural character; as well as outdoor spaces and landscaping which all contribute to a "sense of place" that would be distinctive and attractive.

The Specific Plan urban design policies guide the relationship between buildings and public spaces, including where access should occur, and how structures and spaces are located in relation to each other. The urban design policies work in conjunction with the land use policies. The urban design policies serve to foster innovative design and site features that complement the public realm and provide connectivity between uses. They are general and illustrative to provide flexibility and encourage creativity and variety through site specific implementation. As the area experiences infill development and building renovations, the Specific Plan encourages development to include innovative and dynamic forms.



Urban Design Framework
A Tecolote Station Village with a vibrant mix of uses, entertainment, and a highly walkable streetscape focused around the transit station.
A Morena Station Village with a vibrant mix of uses, an improved circulation network, and strong pedestrian connections to the University of San Diego and the transit station.
C A Morena Design District that draws from the surrounding communities and the region that promotes the district as a center for artisan crafts, food, and beverages with the Tecolote Linear Park as a defining feature.
D Public view corridors that are preserved.
(E) Iconic gateways at key locations that generate a sense of place and arrival through the use architecture, community signs, public art, landscape features and public space.
(F) Commercial nodes located along Morena Boulevard at key intersections within Clairemont where building storefronts define the street environment and support social and pedestrian activity.
G An urban trail that provides connections to Mission Bay Park, San Diego River Park, Presidio Park, and Old Town for bicyclists and pedestrians.
(Refer to Figure 4-1)



Figure 4-1 - Urban Design Framework Map





4.2. STREETSCAPE AND PUBLIC REALM

The public realm includes all the spaces between buildings that can be freely accessed; it encompasses all outdoor areas including streets and public spaces. The design of the public realm can create opportunities for social interaction, business activation, and attractive pedestrian areas. Streetscape elements are the functional and decorative elements within the public realm. Sidewalks can incorporate pedestrian access, gathering space, unique design, and public art.

The Specific Plan envisions transforming auto-oriented streets into multi-modal streets that accommodate all users while also incorporating elements of sustainability. This vision should be accomplished through a combination of design strategies including expansion and enhancement of sidewalks and public spaces to improve the pedestrian environment primarily along the streets of Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard, also referred to as the Morena Corridor.

Policies

<u>Sidewalks</u>

- **4.2.1.** Provide wider sidewalks along Morena Boulevard and within village areas where feasible.
- **4.2.2.** Keep the pedestrian path of travel and street corners clear of obstructions and visual clutter.
- **4.2.3.** Locate and design any new utilities, where feasible, outside of the sidewalk to maintain a clear path of travel.

Public Spaces

4.2.4. Encourage pedestrian activity by siting retail stores, restaurants, offices, or other activities that encourage pedestrian activity at the edges of public spaces.



(1) **Furnishings Zone** – Transition area and buffer between pedestrian zone and the roadway. Consider placement of elements that compliment the street such as lighting, signs, trees, driveway aprons, parking meters, and news racks.

⁽²⁾**Throughway/Pedestrian Zone –** Main travel way intended for mobility access. Maintain a continuous, clearly defined, unobstructed route clear of obstacles and accessible to users of all abilities.

(3) **Frontage Zone** – Transition area between the pedestrian zone and abutting property. Consider outdoor amenities associated with the building frontage such as awnings, overhangs, café railings, planters, doorways, security grills, and business signs.





- **4.2.5.** Incorporate public spaces, such as plazas, and paseos, and pocket parks in areas visible from the street, or link to the street with a clear connection feature such as an open passage.
- **4.2.6.** Incorporate public space to expand and add interest to the public realm and to serve as village gathering areas including, but not limited to pocket parks, urban greens, plazas, courtyards, mini parks within villages, and commercial nodes.
- **4.2.7.** Incorporate landscape and architecture elements at village entryways, commercial nodes and public spaces to establish a strong sense of identity and wayfinding.

<u>Seating</u>

- **4.2.8.** Incorporate public seating, cafe and restaurant spaces, patios, and plazas along the sidewalk to activate the public realm along Morena Corridor within commercial nodes and community villages.
- **4.2.9.** Provide benches and other forms of seating (e.g. low walls, planter edges, wide steps), particularly along the Morena Corridor within commercial nodes and community villages.





Pedestrian-oriented public spaces in villages will enhance the public realm.



<u>Paving</u>

4.2.10. Incorporate enhanced paving design into parking lot design, driveway entries, pedestrian walkways, and plazas, where feasible.

<u>Stormwater</u>

- **4.2.11.** Use permeable ground surfaces in public spaces to the extent possible and install materials that allow access in all weather conditions.
- **4.2.12.** Incorporate permeable paving to reduce storm water runoff and absorption of rainwater.
- **4.2.13.** Incorporate bio-filtration and bio-retention measures in parking lot design, edges of paved areas, and other landscaped areas to capture storm water runoff.
- **4.2.14.** Create green streets that provide "urban greening" features that enhance the pedestrian and bicycle environment, storm water management features, and opportunities for additional street trees.

Lighting

- **4.2.15.** Design the lighting of outdoor areas, such as streets, walkways, parking lots, and public spaces to improve the nighttime environment for safe and enjoyable use.
- **4.2.16.** Utilize outdoor lighting that conserves energy and resources, while providing for safety.
- **4.2.17.** Design outdoor lighting to shield residential areas from adverse effects of night lighting.
- **4.2.18.** Consider the placement, intensity, timing, duration, and color of outdoor lighting.







Enhanced paving, landscaping, and lighting help contribute to a comfortable and attractive pedestrian environment.







Unique building design can enhance visual interest and create a distinct identify for the community.

<u>Urban Forest</u>

- **4.2.19.** Utilize street trees to establish linkages between blocks and to frame public views. Refer to the City's Street Tree Selection Guide for selecting trees.
- **4.2.20.** Maximize root growth area by increasing tree well and parkway sizes and soil volumes through the use of suspended pavements or structural soils in deep wells.
- **4.2.21.** Retain mature trees with good health and appearance and incorporate them into the landscape design.



4.3. BRANDING AND GATEWAYS

Gateways help create a sense of arrival and sense of place that indicates entry to a unique location by providing a visual experience for pedestrians, bicyclists, and motorists. Signage, monuments, public realm improvements, and architectural and site design help define gateways. Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard are linear gateways that connect the San Diego River and Old Town San Diego to Clairemont Drive. Gateway nodes are points along these linear gateways and other significant streets that mark key entrances to the community. The Public Facilities chapter addresses funding for the installation and maintenance of gateway landscaping and lighting that exceeds basic City standards. Figure 4-2 shows both the linear gateways and gateway nodes.



A banner program will highlight the Morena Corridor as a unique business district and destination.



Wayfinding signs and markers will highlight community character and support mobility.



Public art can be incorporated into amenities in the public realm.

Policies

Branding

- **4.3.1.** Support development of a unique sign and banner branding program for the Morena Corridor to create an attractive and identifiable area which could include gateway signage, directional signage, and district-specific banners displaying events and characteristic uses.
- **4.3.2.** Incorporate the Morena Corridor or district logo and a greeting that is unique to the Morena Corridor on gateway signage.
- **4.3.3.** Support the installation of directional wayfinding signage to define pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular linkages at gateways nodes and along the Morena Corridor linear gateway.

Gateway Nodes

4.3.4. Incorporate gateway nodes and pedestrian-oriented retail uses at major entrances to the community that enhance the sense of arrival and establish community character for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles.





Figure 4-2 - Conceptual Gateway Sign Locations



July 2019

- **4.3.5.** Incorporate lighting and signage, community markers, or unique landscape themes that reinforces the Morena Corridor "brand" to place emphasis at community gateway nodes.
- **4.3.6.** Design buildings located at gateway nodes to be oriented to the gateway corner with pedestrian spaces, and/or iconic architectural features.
- **4.3.7.** Incorporate architecture, landscape features, lighting, and/or public art to emphasize the entrance into the Morena Corridor, which could include, but are not limited to:
 - Tower elements as prominent massing features
 - Entry plazas on corner sites
 - Fountains or other water features
 - Distinct changes in the building volume at the primary entry
 - Prominent landscape features, such as large or growing tall trees
 - Unique building lighting for nighttime effect
 - Public art installations that reinforce themes reflective of the Morena Corridor
 - Buildings designed as iconic representations of their district's character







Gateways that incorporate signage help establish unique entryways into the community.



4.4. DEVELOPMENT DESIGN

The Specific Plan envisions activating the ground floor spaces along the Morena Corridor and within villages to improve the pedestrian environment and encourage higher pedestrian activity within the area. Building design should incorporate different modulations, articulations, transparencies, and step backs, and use materials with varying colors and textures, in order to provide buildings with a pedestrian-oriented scale and visual appeal.







Design that incorporates facade articulation and active street frontages enhances pedestrian activity.

Policies

<u>General</u>

- **4.4.1.** Design buildings to front directly onto and be oriented to public streets, pedestrian pathways, and/or public space.
- **4.4.2.** Design buildings to avoid uninterrupted blank walls along all building facades.
- **4.4.3.** Design buildings to create a strong sense of edge along streets by providing consistent buildings setbacks.
- **4.4.4.** Incorporate Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) concepts within developments, along sidewalks, paseos, and walkways, at transit stops/ stations, and public space to enhance the safety and comfort of the pedestrian experience as appropriate.

Pedestrian-Oriented Frontages

- **4.4.5.** Design buildings to incorporate modulation, façade articulation, and offsetting planes to help reduce their visual bulk and to provide visual interest by avoiding monotonous facades.
- **4.4.6.** Pedestrian-oriented areas for outdoor dining, shopping, and passive recreation or cultural events should be integrated into buildings and development sites to provide additional vitality to the public realm.
- **4.4.7.** Design buildings emphasizing their pedestrian orientation by differentiating the ground floor from the upper floors by providing changes in massing and a greater degree of material textures, articulation, and transparency.



- **4.4.8.** Design commercial and mixed-use buildings with active frontage elements such as enlarged windows, storefronts and public spaces that front on to the public realm to enliven the streetscape and provide eyes on the street
- **4.4.9.** Encourage the use of non-reflective vision glass on all ground floor retail, commercial, and office uses along street frontages.
- **4.4.10.** Design the side and rear elevations of commercial and mixed-use buildings with comparable design features as the front façade.
- **4.4.11.** Encourage public realm enhancements such as increased setbacks for plazas, in conjunction with active building frontages, to help create a sense of place.
- **4.4.12.** Incorporate enhanced building materials, textures, and detailing at the ground level, and into commercial and mixed-use building features such as plane changes, entries, and corners.
- **4.4.13.** Incorporate accent landscape plantings along building facades that highlight architectural features and help create inviting, pedestrian-oriented frontages.

<u>Entrances</u>

- **4.4.14.** Orient primary building entries toward public sidewalks, plazas, parks, and public or private pathways that connect to the public sidewalk to encourage an active public realm.
- **4.4.15.** Design buildings with pedestrian-oriented ground floor entrances that incorporate street wall articulation.
- **4.4.16.** Design entryways that add interest and attract pedestrians.







The use of quality materials and finishes in building design can enhance the identity of the corridor.



Massing and Articulation

- **4.4.17.** Design buildings with a pedestrian-oriented scale by differentiating the mass and scale of buildings, varying rooflines, incorporating vertical and horizontal modulations, and using color and/or architectural elements.
- **4.4.18.** Design buildings with vertical articulation of façades through recessed façade elements, balconies, bays, and changes in wall materials and colors.
- **4.4.19.** Use appropriate and adequate variation in setbacks, frontal planes, massing, corner cuts, and building footprints to minimize bulk, promote visibility, and create variety with rhythm and order.
- **4.4.20.** Provide visual interest and reduce the overall mass of buildings with variations in roof form, height, and profiles.

<u>Parking</u>

- 4.4.21. Design and locate parking areas in relation to buildings to minimize the exposure of parked vehicles to the public view and the primary street.
 - a. Locate parking areas behind buildings where feasible.
 - b. Use active frontages (residential, retail, or commercial) to wrap parking structures when placing adjacent to a primary street frontage or public space.
 - c. Utilize buildings, architectural features, public art, or landscaped buffers to screen parking areas.
 - d. Encourage structured parking in order to minimize area dedicated to automobile parking.
 - e. Consider articulated parking structure facades to minimize bulk and scale.
 - f. Avoid placing parking areas at the intersection of the primary streets with a secondary street.







Design that incorporates articulation and offsetting planes helps to avoid monotonous facades.



- **4.4.22.** Incorporate pedestrian pathways in surface parking and parking structure design to provide linkages between transit stops/stations, building entrances, retail uses, parking areas, and streets.
- **4.4.23.** Share parking and loading access to the maximum extent feasible and locate access points away from a primary building entrance, pedestrian pathway, or public outdoor gathering area.
- **4.4.24.** Design parking structures that serve a group of buildings to be compatible in architectural treatment to the buildings they serve.

Service Areas and Mechanical Equipment

- **4.4.25.** Locate service and loading access at the rear of buildings. If this is not possible, then screen with low building elements that integrate living walls, landscaping, public art, and lighting.
- **4.4.26.** Locate utilities, storage, and refuse collection at side or rear of buildings, and away from the public realm.
- **4.4.27.** Locate mechanical equipment, including ground, building, and roof-mounted equipment away from the public view.
- **4.4.28.** Screen mechanical equipment from the street frontage with building elements and landscaping that are consistent with the overall character and design of the building facades.



Parking structures that are consistent in architectural treatment to the buildings that they serve creates visual harmony and minimizes the visual prominence of parking.



4.5. SUSTAINABLE DESIGN

Sustainable design can minimize energy consumption and encourage pedestrian activity by relating well to its site, the surrounding environment, and the climate. The Climate Action Plan identifies strategies and actions to meet specific citywide greenhouse gas reduction targets including strategies related to building and site design. To improve sustainability, building retrofits and new construction should utilize environmentally conscious building practices and materials, increase energy and water efficiency, increase on-site energy generation, reduce waste generation, and support active modes of transportation in addition to automobiles.



Policies

<u>Energy</u>

- **4.6.1.** Design buildings and sites to incorporate passive solar design.
- **4.6.2.** Maximize the use of solar energy through installation of photovoltaic panels, solar water heating systems, and other technologies.
- **4.6.3.** Encourage the installation of solar energy generation systems where large roof surfaces, surface parking areas, or parking structures that are discretely located to limit visibility from the street or glare to adjacent properties.
- **4.6.4.** Encourage the implementation of wind energy generation systems that are compatible with surrounding development.
- **4.6.5.** Encourage the adaptive reuse of existing buildings, in conjunction with improvements to increase energy efficiency and building longevity.

Heating and Cooling

- **4.6.6.** Design buildings and landscaping to minimize building heat gain.
 - a. Employ trees and landscaping strategically in site design for their benefits in building, window, and outdoor space shading.







New public and private development and building retrofits are encouraged to incorporate energy- and water-efficient building and site design.

- b. Choose "cool" roofing materials or green roof designs.
- c. Utilize window sunshades, extended roof eaves, and low emissivity ("low-e") window glass to control solar exposure for building interiors.
- **4.6.7.** Maximize natural and passive cooling that builds on the proximity of Mission Bay and the Pacific Ocean by employing building design that incorporates vents oriented to capture prevailing winds; ceiling vaults; and thermal chimneys to facilitate air movement.

<u>Landscape</u>

- **4.6.8.** Utilize drought-tolerant and native species in landscaping and parkway design to minimize water usage while providing attractive streets and environments.
- **4.6.9.** Discourage the use of turf in new ornamental landscaping areas, and strongly encourage the replacement of ornamental turf with water-wise landscaping in existing landscaping areas.
- **4.6.10.** Design and retrofit buildings to capture and utilize rain water for landscape irrigation.
- **4.6.11.** Encourage the uses of graywater reuse systems for landscape irrigation to supplement potable water supplies.

<u>Stormwater</u>

- **4.6.12.** Integrate storm water and urban runoff capture and treatment facilities into landscaping and parking areas.
- **4.6.13.** Minimize on-site impermeable surfaces, such as concrete and asphalt.
- **4.6.14.** Where feasible, utilize permeable paving materials, such as porous asphalt, permeable pavers, reinforced grass pavement (turf-crete), cobblestone block pavement, to allow storm water and urban runoff infiltration.







Drought-tolerant landscaping and storm water features can enhance sites while furthering sustainability goals.



5 | Recreation

The Specific Plan area is a generally linear area in a mostly developed, urbanized area of San Diego. Within the Specific Plan area, the only park is the Silver Terrace Mini Park (1.28 acres) along Friars Road in Linda Vista. However, the area surrounding the Specific Plan has many opportunities for public access to parks and recreation facilities, including Tecolote Community park and recreation Center, Tecolote Canyon Natural Park, Western Hills Neighborhood Park, Sefton Field, as well as Mission Bay Park.

RECREATION GOALS

- Additional parks and recreational opportunities that meet the needs of the residents in the Specific Plan area.
- Privately owned/publicly-used parks that are built on site when new infill development occurs.

5.1. PARK OPPORTUNITIES

Figure 5-1 - Illustrative Drawing of Tecolote Linear Park in the Design District





PARK AND RECREATION FACILITIES

Opportunities for additional park land and recreation facilities within the Specific Plan area are anticipated to occur primarily through redevelopment of private properties and through the application of park equivalencies. While the City's primary goal is to obtain land for population-based parks, where vacant land is limited, unavailable or cost prohibitive, the City's General Plan allows for the promotion of alternative methods (park equivalencies) such as providing privately owned/publicly-used parks and non-traditional parks such as rooftop parks. Further discussion of equivalencies can be found in the Recreation Element of the General Plan.

Policies

- **5.1.1.** Provide sufficient community park and recreational facilities to meet the needs of the future residential population.
- **5.1.2.** Provide flexibility in placement of population-based parks while ensuring their public accessibility and visibility from the public right-of-way.
- **5.1.3.** Pursue the creation of linear parks as a component of the Specific Plan's park and recreational system.

Tecolote Linear Park

Provide a linear park along the southern side of Tecolote Road between the terminus of Savannah Street and West Morena Boulevard to create a park that provides a multi-use trail as well as typical neighborhood park amenities on City-owned land in the Linda Vista Community. This could be a highly utilized public park that provides a pedestrian connection to the Tecolote Village, Tecolote Road and Mission Bay as well as the Design District. Figure 5-1 illustrates a conceptual development design. The design of the park would occur through a public process.





A system of parks and recreational facilities, including linear parks along key corridors, will meet the community's park needs and enhance its livability.
6 | Conservation

CONSERVATION GOALS

- Development and improvements that help to reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions, support active transportation and transit use, and support the local economy.
- Sustainable development, building practices, and landscapes that reduce dependence on non-renewable energy sources and natural resources.
- Implementation of sustainable storm water management techniques to support the surrounding landscape and reduce impacts on urban infrastructure and the downstream environment.

6.1. Sustainable Development

The concepts of conservation and sustainability address the relationship of the built environment to the natural environment with the objective of achieving environmental benefits through energy and resource conservation and sustainable development.

Building upon the General Plan, the City adopted a Climate Action Plan (CAP) to achieve the State of California's mandates for greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions through local action and to the benefit of San Diego's environment and economy. The CAP calls for eliminating half of all GHG emissions within the City by 2035.

Sustainable development in the Morena Corridor will incorporate building features and streetscape design that reduce energy and water consumption, improve water and air quality, reduce waste, and facilitate and encourage alternatives to travel by single-occupant vehicles. The Specific Plan area benefits from the location of three transit centers along the corridor. Residential, commercial, and visitor-oriented uses in the community can take advantage of the easy access to regional transit services that the transit centers provide and reduce transportation-related GHG emissions.



In order to convey the importance of resource conservation and sustainable building and site design, conservation policies have also been incorporated into the Urban Design Chapter in Section 4.5, Sustainable Design.

Sustainable development has a renewed importance due to the visible effects of global climate change resulting from greenhouse gas emissions. Potential impacts of a changing climate – higher seasonal temperatures, diminished water supplies, disruption of agricultural cycles – affect the built and natural environment and the Morena Corridor's health and economic vitality.

The General Plan's goals and policies regarding climate change and natural resources aim for a balance between natural resources and economic prosperity while protecting the public health, safety, and welfare of residents by making our built environment more resilient and healthy. The CAP provides a package of policies with steps the City can take to achieve the 2035 GHG emissions reductions targets and address climate change. The CAP supports implementation of the General Plan through support for continued incremental changes to the urban land use and urban form, providing a greater variety of transportation choices, and transforming how we produce and use energy and water. Further, the CAP will complement the General Plan policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions with quantifiable data and benchmarks for success.

The CAP policies and actions are organized around the following five strategies:

- 1. Energy & water efficient buildings
- 2. Clean & renewable energy
- 3. Bicycle, walking, transit & land use
- 4. Zero waste
- 5. Climate resilience

The CAP's mobility and land use strategy aims to expand bicycling, walking, and transit use as alternatives to automobile trips, particularly for work commute trips. The strategy's land use component would advance the General Plan's "City of Villages" concept of walkable and pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods with a mix of uses. The Morena Corridor is well-positioned to reduce dependence on the private automobile due to the community's central location in the region, walkable size, and access to transit services. A majority of the specific plan area is within a Transit Priority Area (TPA), defined as an area with half-mile distance of a major transit stop, which makes public transit a viable transportation option. The land use plan (Figure 2-1) implements the CAP's land use and mobility strategy by designing areas for higher density housing within the TPA.

The Specific Plan identifies bicycle and pedestrian facility improvements that complement the land use strategy to provide housing growth opportunities within TPAs. The Specific Plan establishes a modified grid network that facilitates shifting trips to transit, walking, and bicycling, while also accommodating vehicle traffic and minimizing conflicts between travel modes. The identified mobility improvements include intersection, sidewalk, and roadway improvements to increase accessibility and improve connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians. The identified infrastructure improvements,

SD

as well as improved connections of the bicycle and pedestrian network to the transit stations will support the Morena Corridor's residential and employment capacity with less increase in per capita vehicle emissions.

Sustainable development practices will implement the other CAP strategies and help meet the CAP's GHG emissions reduction goals. Modern sustainable building features can include alternative building materials, energy and water conservation systems, and alternative sources of energy.

Policies

- **6.1.1.** Reduce greenhouse gas emissions through a wide range of actions consistent with the General Plan and Climate Action Plan.
 - a. Implement pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure improvements in Transit Priority Areas to increase commuter walking and bicycling opportunities.
 - **b.** Support higher density/intensity housing and employment development in Transit Priority Areas to increase transit ridership.
 - **c.** Provide additional bicycle and pedestrian improvements in coordination with street resurfacing as feasible.
 - **d.** Coordinate with San Diego Association of Governments to identify transit right-of-way and priority measures to support existing and planned transit routes, prioritizing for implementation the highest priority bicycle and pedestrian improvements.
 - e. Support regional improvements that promote alternative modes of transportation, such as mobility hubs.
 - f. Provide bicycle- and car-sharing programs and their facilities such as bicycle-sharing stations and car-sharing vehicle access points.
 - **g.** Re-time traffic signals and install roundabouts where needed to reduce vehicle fuel consumption.
 - **h.** Apply the CAP consistency checklist as a part of the development permit review process, as applicable.
 - i. Support and implement improvements to enhance transit accessibility and operations, as feasible.
 - j. Monitor the mode share within the Specific Plan's TPAs to support the CAP Annual Monitoring Report Program.
- **6.1.2.** Implement mobility measures that reduce dependence on single-occupant vehicle use, increase fuel efficiency and promote the use of alternative more sustainable energy sources.
- **6.1.3.** Promote car and bicycle sharing programs as cost-effective alternatives to car ownership for residents and employees.
- **6.1.4.** Encourage community organizations and businesses to educate residents, employees and visitors about the accessibility of transit, community destinations, and regional recreational resources via walking and bicycling.



- **6.1.5.** Promote the adaptive reuse of existing buildings in conjunction with any needed renovations to increase their energy efficiency as part of a comprehensive energy use reduction strategy.
- 6.1.6. Ensure that development is consistent with General Plan and Community Plan sustainability policies and supports implementation of the Climate Action Plan. Reduce development project-level greenhouse gas emissions to acceptable levels by incorporating sustainable building and development practices (refer to Urban Design Element, Building Design: Sustainability section), applying site-specific mitigation measures, and adhering to specific strategies and actions outlined in the Climate Action Plan.
- **6.1.7.** Improve energy and water conservation in the operation and design of existing and new public facilities and public landscaping areas.
- 6.1.8. Encourage the implementation of energy- and water-efficient measures for commercial uses that exceed California Code, such as energy-efficient and water-efficient machinery for laundry operations; energy-efficient and water-efficient kitchens in restaurants; and storefront shading.
- **6.1.9.** Encourage new development and building retrofits to incorporate as many water-wise practices as possible.
 - a. Encourage the replacement of existing ornamental lawns with native and drought-tolerant landscaping.
 - b. Encourage use of recycled and/or graywater landscape irrigation systems;
 - c. Ensure that any community greening or community garden projects utilize waterefficient landscape and irrigation design.
- **6.1.10.** Encourage residential, commercial, and institutional development to implement composting for landscaping waste and compatible food waste.
- **6.1.11.** Encourage restaurant uses to participate in commercial food waste recycling programs and utilize eco-friendly take-out containers and reusable drink containers without plastic straws.
- **6.1.12.** Increase the community's overall tree canopy within the public right-of-way and development sites to provide air quality benefits and urban runoff management.
- **6.1.13.** Design and construct development to retain significant, mature and healthy trees located within required landscape setbacks, and within other portions of the site as feasible (also refer to Urban Design Chapter).
- **6.1.14.** Plant or replace street trees to provide continuous, regularly spaced tree canopies.
- **6.1.15.** Consider air quality and air pollution sources in the siting, design, and construction of residential development and other development with sensitive receptors.
- **6.1.16.** Incorporate building features into new building with residential units and other sensitive receptors located within 500 feet of the outside freeway travel lane to reduce the effects of air pollution.



6.2. Urban Runoff Management

Urbanization and development alter and inhibit the natural hydrologic process of surface water infiltration, percolation to groundwater, evapotranspiration, and transpiration. Urban runoff is surface water runoff generated from developed or disturbed land, and storm water is one significant type of urban runoff. Increases in impervious surfaces lead to fewer opportunities for water runoff to infiltrate into the ground. This increases the magnitude and duration of storm water flows, contributing to urban flooding, and results in sediment and pollutants entering watersheds and downstream waterbodies. Urban runoff is the largest pollution source of San Diego's coastal beaches and near shore waters.

Improvements in the management of storm water runoff can help address flooding in the community during wet weather and assist regional efforts to protect water quality within streams, bays, and the ocean. Low Impact Development (LID) techniques are approaches to storm water and urban runoff management that increase the ability of water to infiltrate into the ground. LID techniques that can be implemented through development projects include reduction of impermeable surfaces and installation of bio-infiltration and bio-retention areas, green roofs, and permeable pavement. Incorporation of storm water management facilities in the public right-of-way will further improve storm water management along the Morena Corridor.

Policies

- **6.2.1.** Incorporate Low Impact Development practices into building design and site plans that work with the natural hydrology of a site to reduce urban runoff, including the design or retrofit of existing landscaped or impervious areas to better capture storm water runoff.
- **6.2.2.** Incorporate and maintain storm water best management practices in public infrastructure and private development projects, including streetscape improvements to limit water pollution, erosion, and sedimentation.
- **6.2.3.** Prioritize Low Impact Development practices that encourage water infiltration to minimize reliance on storm drains that could be impaired by sea level rise.

This page is intentionally left blank



7 | Infrastructure, Public Facilities and Services

The Morena Corridor is a developed area with basic infrastructure and facilities. Certain utilities may need to be expanded to serve future growth.

7.1. Water

Water lines are generally located in the public streets and range in size from 5 to 16 inches. The Specific Plan area is primarily served by a 16-inch main running the length of Morena Boulevard, which connects to a 16-inch main in Friars Road. Other large water lines in the area include 12-inch lines in Cushman Avenue, Knoxville Street, Littlefield Street, Milton Street, Jellett Street, and Gesner Street. The water lines are primarily made of cast iron (CI), asbestos cement (AC), and poly-vinyl chloride (PVC).

The City Public Utilities Department has planned maintenance that will upgrade/replace some of the older and undersized water lines in the Specific Plan area. This work is scheduled to be completed from 2018 to 2023. This work includes replacing the 16-inch CI line in Morena Boulevard with a 16-inch PVC line and replacing numerous AC lines with PVC. Where the existing AC lines are undersized, the new PVC lines will be upsized to meet current standards. The City currently requires an 8-inch-minimum diameter for public water mains, with a 12-inch minimum in commercial zones to meet fire flow requirements.

Implementation of the Specific Plan could require upgrades to the existing water system infrastructure to ensure adequate capacity and sufficient water flow.

7.2. Wastewater

Lines in the existing sewer system in the Specific Plan area can be divided into two classes: small mains and trunk sewers. The small mains form the collection system and convey sewer flows from individual properties to the trunk sewers. The trunk sewers are larger sewer lines that convey flows from multiple small mains as well as from adjacent neighborhoods.

The small mains are 8 to 15 inches in diameter and made of vitrified clay (VC) and PVC. Generally, the small mains are considered to operate within their capacity, with no capacity-related issues in the project area. Similar to the water system, the City has identified required maintenance and upgrades for the sewer system. Sewer lines that have been inspected were identified as requiring routine maintenance only, point repair, rehabilitation, or replacement.



July 2019

The major trunk sewers include lines in Morena Boulevard, Anna Avenue, Tecolote Road, Lehigh Street, Frankfort Street, and Ingulf Street. To assess the capacity of the trunk sewers to accept a potential increase in flows from the project area, the 2012 and 2025 flow data was examined. Implementation of the Specific Plan could require upgrades to the existing wastewater system infrastructure to ensure adequate capacity and sufficient flow.

7.3. Stormwater

The topography of the Specific Plan area generally falls from east to west, which is the direction of storm drain flow. The public storm drain system in the Specific Plan area has been divided into six drainage basins based on discharge points. Basin A consists of the southeastern portion of the Specific Plan area that drains to the San Diego River. Runoff in this area is collected by storm drains that convey flows southwest to the river. Basin B is in the southwest portion of the Specific Plan area and drains to a 60-inch-diameter storm drain that discharges to an open channel along I-5.

Basin C drains to Tecolote Creek via multiple underground storm drains and includes the southcentral portion of the Specific Plan area both north and south of Tecolote Creek. Basin D is in the north-central portion of the Specific Plan area and ultimately discharges to Mission Bay via multiple underground storm drains. Basins E and F are in the northern portion of the Specific Plan area and drain to large-diameter storm drains that also collect runoff from the offsite areas to the east. The storm drains in Basins E and F both discharge to Mission Bay.

The Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit (Order No. R9-2013-0001 as amended by Order No. R9-2015-001 and Order No. R9-2015-0100) provides the City of San Diego discretion to allow priority development project (PDP) applicants to transfer onsite obligations to implement pollutant control and hydromodification controls to an offsite project under specific conditions. The City of San Diego has developed the Offsite Alternative Compliance Program to allow developments to implement offsite treatment under this provision.

It is recommended that future development in the Morena Corridor Specific Plan take advantage of Alternative Compliance Program, as described in Part 3 of the City of San Diego Storm Water Standards Manual, to help facilitate compliance with storm water treatment standards and promote locating treatment facilities in an optimal location to treat regional stormwater runoff.

7.4. Dry Utilities

Telecommunications and Cable Service

Communications systems for telephone, computers, and cable television for the Specific Plan area are serviced by utility providers such as AT&T, Cox, and other independent telecommunications companies. The City works with service providers to underground overhead wires, cables, conductors, and other structures associated with communication systems in residential areas in accordance with proposed development projects.



Energy (Electricity and Natural Gas)

San Diego Gas and Electric Company (SDG&E) is responsible for supply, transmission, and distribution of electricity and natural gas to customers in the Specific Plan area.

7.5. Public Facilities

Library

The City of San Diego's Public Library system has two libraries that serve the Specific Plan area: the Clairemont Library (2920 Burgener Boulevard) further east along Clairemont Drive, and the Linda Vista Library (2160 Ulric Street) further east off of Linda Vista Road.

Public Schools

The San Diego Unified School District provides kindergarten to 12th grade schools that serve the Specific Plan area: Bay Park Elementary School (K-5th grade), Marston Middle School (6th-8th grade), and Clairemont High School (9th-12th grade).

Police

The San Diego Police Department (SDPD) provides police services that include patrol, traffic, investigative, records, laboratory, and support services. The SDPD Western Division station is in the Specific Plan area on Gaines Street. The Western Division serves the portion of the Specific Plan area south of Tecolote Road, within Beat 622-Morena. The Northern Division serves the northern portion of the Specific Plan area, north of Tecolote Road within Beat 116-Bay Park.

Fire/Emergency Services

The Specific Plan area is serviced by San Diego Fire-Rescue Station 25 at 1972 Chicago Street. Fire Station 25 has a battalion chief's vehicle and an engine. The engine responds to both fire and medical incidents. Rural/Metro San Diego is contracted with the City to provide emergency medical services.

Solid Waste

The City's Environmental Services Department provides refuse, recycling, and yard waste collection and disposal services to primarily single-family homes as well as some multifamily and commercial/ business customers. Most multifamily residences and commercial and industrial business customers are not served by the City and are required to fund and contract directly with private haulers for trash and recycling collection.



This page is intentionally left blank.

8 |Implementation

8.1. Purpose

The Municipal Code establishes requirements for specific plans by referencing the California Government Code, which requires that a specific plan be consistent with the General Plan. The Morena Corridor Specific Plan contains policies and supplemental development regulations that are consistent with the General Plan. This Specific Plan has been adopted by ordinance.

8.2. Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Specific Plan, or any future amendments or additions hereto, is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Specific Plan document or any future amendments or additions hereto. The City hereby declares that it would have adopted these requirements and each sentence, subsection, clause, phrase or portion or any future amendments or additions thereto, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, clauses, phrases, portions or any future amendments or additions thereto may be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

8.3. Administration

The Development Services Director shall administer the Specific Plan and ensure compliance with the regulations and conformance with the policies of the Specific Plan. Where lands are subject to the jurisdiction of other agencies and organizations, including the State of California, MTS, and SANDAG any superseding land use authority of those agencies shall apply.



8.4. Environmental Review

Senate Bill 743 (SB 743) provides an exemption from environmental review for development that is consistent with a Specific Plan (See Public Resources Code Section 21155.4). The exemption applies if a development meets all of the following criteria:

- It is a residential, employment center, or mixed-use project;
- It is located within a transit priority area;
- It is consistent with a specific plan for which an environmental impact report was certified; and
- It is consistent with an adopted sustainable communities strategy or alternative planning strategy.

8.5. Land Development Code

Chapters 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the Municipal Code are collectively referred to as the Land Development Code. The Land Development Code (LDC) sets forth the procedures used in the application of land use regulations, the processes of development review, and the regulations that apply to the use and development of land in the City of San Diego including the Specific Plan.

Review Process

The Specific Plan shall not establish new decision processes or permit types, but shall use Process One through Process Five as established in Chapter 11 (Land Development Procedures) and permit types described in Chapter 12 (Land Development Reviews). All provisions of the Land Development Code apply except as supplemented by the Specific Plan. Proposed development within the Specific Plan Area will be reviewed for conformance with General Plan policies, Specific Plan policies and supplemental development regulations, and all other applicable regulations in the LDC, including base zones and overlay zone development regulations.



8.6. Supplemental Development Regulations

The Specific Plan contains supplemental development regulations, provided below. The purpose of these regulations is to provide standards for the evaluation of development projects. It is intended that these supplemental regulations, in combination with the development regulations of the applicable base zone, create the type of development envisioned by the Specific Plan. Where there is a conflict between the supplemental development regulation and the development regulation of the applicable base zone, the supplemental development regulation within the Specific Plan applies. Where the Specific Plan is silent on a topic, the Municipal Code requirements remain in effect. The Specific Plan supplemental development regulations are only applicable within the Linda Vista Community Plan area.

Applicable regulations of the LDC shall apply to property within the Design District, Employment District, Tecolote Village District and Morena Station District, boundaries as shown on Figure 8-1, except for the supplemental requirements listed below. Refer to the Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Enhancement Program for additional supplemental development regulations for the Tecolote Village and Morena Station Districts.

All Districts

- **SDR-1.** Mobility Improvements. No building permits shall be issued for projects that would generate more than 1,000 Average Daily Trips (ADT) or 100 peak hour trips unless existing streets and related public facilities are improved to accommodate traffic generated by the project to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, including the following:
 - **a.** Installation of traffic signals, turn lanes, turn lane storage capacity, and bicycle serving infrastructure at intersections, entrances, and exits that serve the project;
 - b. Modification of existing traffic signal at access points that serve the project; and
 - **c.** Installation of bicycle and pedestrian-serving infrastructure along the frontage of the project at intersections, entrances, and exits that serve the project.

Tecolote Village District and Morena Station District

- **SDR-2.** Structure Height. Maximum structure height shall be limited to 45 feet. Architectural projections may exceed this limit by 5 feet.
- SDR-3. Building Entrances. Primary building entrances shall front a public street.
- SDR-4. Sidewalks. Provide noncontiguous sidewalks consistent with the requirements of the City of San Diego Street Design Manual.
- **SDR-5.** Drive-Throughs. Commercial uses with a drive-through are not permitted. Properties with existing drive-through restaurants permitted on or before January 1, 2018 are exempt from this regulation and may be maintained or relocated on the same property.





Figure 8-1 - Morena Corridor Districts Map

- **SDR-6.** Calculation of Residential Density and Floor Area. The calculation of residential density and floor area shall be based upon gross site area including any dedication of right-of-way on any site where new public streets, parks, or linear parks are planned or will be constructed.
- SDR-7. Traffic Signal Installation. No building permits shall be issued in the Tecolote Village and Morena Station Districts for any project until a traffic signal has been installed at the intersection of Morena Boulevard & Savannah Street or left turn movements have been restricted from Savannah Street onto Morena Boulevard, unless the warrants for a traffic signal are not met as determined by the City Engineer in accordance with Council Policy 200-06.
- **SDR-8.** Roadway Extensions. The roadway extensions identified in Figure 8-1 illustrate the future right-of-way area for the Morena Station District. Prior to the construction of the roadway extension, no new development, including structures, shall be constructed or permitted within the area identified for the roadway extension, except for the following: landscaping, parking facilities, or driveways.

Design District and Employment District

SDR-9. Structure Height. Maximum structure height shall be limited to 45 feet. Architectural projections may exceed this limit by 5 feet.



Clairemont District

- **SDR-10.** Transportation Improvements. No building permits shall be issued in the Clairemont District for any project until the following transportation improvements are installed, unless the warrants for the traffic signals are not met as determined by the City Engineer in accordance with Council Policy 200-06:
 - a. Installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of Morena Boulevard & Jellett Street, or restriction of left turn movements from Jellett Street onto Morena Boulevard; and
 - b. Installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of E. Mission Bay Drive and Clairemont Drive.

Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program

The Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program can be utilized within land designated Community Village (0-54 DU/AC) in the Tecolote Village and Morena Station Districts, as shown on Figure 8-2. The intent of the Transit-**Oriented Development Enhancement** Program is to allow for increased residential density, to create transitoriented development that supports the implementation of the CAP and implements the Mobility and Urban Design policies of the Specific Plan. The Transit-Oriented **Development Enhancement Program** allows for the density range for this area to be increased up to 109 dwelling units per acre in the Tecolote Village District, and 73 dwelling units per acre in the Morena Station District, whereby an applicant may request approval of the increased density on a specific property through a Planned Development Permit (PDP).

Figure 8-2 - Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program



A project using the Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program must be consistent with the Specific Plan Urban Design and Mobility policies and conform with the requirements set forth in Section 143.0402 of the LDC for PDP's, and may be approved only if the decision maker makes the findings in LDC Section 126.0604(a) as amended.



July 2019

Tecolote Village District

- **SDR-11.** Within the Tecolote Village District as shown on Figure 8-2, allow the following through a Planned Development Permit for proposed mixed-use development:
 - a. A maximum residential density of 109 dwelling units per gross acre.
 - b. Maximum structure height of 100 feet.
 - c. Maximum floor area ratio of 5.0.

Morena Station District

- **SDR-12.** Within the Morena Station District as shown on Figure 8-2, allow the following through a Planned Development Permit for proposed mixed-use development:
 - a. A maximum residential density of 73 dwelling units per gross acre.
 - b. Maximum structure height of 65 feet.
 - c. Maximum floor area ratio of 4.5.

Tecolote Village and Morena Station Districts

SDR-13. Inclusionary Housing Requirement. A minimum of fifteen (15) percent of the total dwelling units in a proposed residential or mixed-use development of 10 or more dwelling units shall be set aside as affordable to and occupied by median income household, which are defined as any household whose income does not exceed the median income as adjusted for household size as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the San Diego Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area. All other Inclusionary Affordable Housing Regulations as set forth in Chapter 14, Article 2, Division 13 of the Land Development Code shall apply, except that the only alternative method of compliance allowed is construction or rehabilitation of units off-site, as set forth in Section 142.1307 in Ordinance O-2020-1, within the Community Plan Area, except that 15% of the units must be affordable to household size as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the San Diego Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area. Italicized terms in Ordinance No. O-2020-1 shall have the meanings set forth in San Diego Municipal Code Section 113.0103 and in Ordinance No. O-2020-1.

8.7. Affordable Housing Density Bonus Regulations

The Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program, described above, is separate from the City's Affordable Housing Regulations found in LDC Chapter 14, Article 3, Division 7, which implements the State of California's Affordable Housing Density Bonus Program. The density bonus program provided in the City's Affordable Housing Regulations is available to eligible development citywide. Under the program, applicants may receive a density bonus beyond the maximum allowable residential density per the Specific Plan in exchange for construction of affordable units or donation of land to be used for affordable housing.



For the purposes of the Affordable Housing Regulations' density bonus program, the maximum allowable residential density per the Specific Plan means the maximum allowable residential density for the designated zoning ranges, including any additional density obtained through the Transit-Oriented Development Enhancement Program.

8.8. Specific Plan Amendments

Land Use Plan Amendments

The process for land use plan amendments, which includes specific plans, is provided by San Diego Municipal Code and the General Plan. Amendments to the Specific Plan require a Planning Commission initiation hearing and City Council adoption.

Technical Amendments

The General Plan provides the process for Technical Amendments which requires City Council adoption without a Planning Commission initiation hearing. Applicable technical amendments to the Specific Plan are specified in the General Plan, Land Use Element for land use plans.

8.9. Implementation Action Plan

Actions with respect to public facilities associated with Specific Plan implementation are identified in the Clairemont Mesa and Linda Vista Public Facilities Financing Plans and below. This provides a mechanism to establish annual programmatic and budgeting priorities consistent with Council Policy 800-14, and monitors progress in achieving the Specific Plan's vision. In conjunction with the City's annual budget process, the identified tasks and projects and their priority may be adjusted given funding availability, feasibility of implementation, timing of private development, or as new projectfunding opportunities present themselves over time.

Mobility Improvements

A summary of the mobility improvements is shown in Table 8-1.



Table 8-1 - Summary of Mobility Improvements

#	Improvement	Existing Condition	Proposed Condition
1	Morena Boulevard from Ingulf Street to Knoxville Street	4-lane roadway with on-street parking along east side and some areas of on-street parking along the west side.	Two lanes southbound and two lanes northbound with left-turn pockets at intersections and a two-way cycle track along the west side of the roadway. Some on-street parking along the east side will remain.
2	Intersection of Morena Boulevard and West Morena Boulevard	"Y" Intersection	"T" Intersection
3	Knoxville Street Extension	Two lane roadway with on-street parking on both sides of the street.	Extend two-lane roadway and create new intersection at Knoxville Street and West Morena Boulevard.
4	West Morena Boulevard Road Diet (Vega Street to Cushman Street)	3 lanes southbound and 2 lanes northbound with on-street parking along the west side and some areas of on-street parking along the east side.	Two southbound lanes and two northbound lanes with left-turn pockets at intersections and a two-way cycle track along the west side of the roadway. Parking along the west side and some areas along the east side.
5	Morena Boulevard (Cushman Street to Linda Vista Road)	4-lane roadway with buffered bike lanes on each side of the roadway.	Maintain the 4 travel lanes and reconfigure the buffered bike lanes to a two-way cycle track along the west side of the roadway.
6	Intersection of Linda Vista Road and Morena Boulevard	"Y" Intersection	Reconfigure the intersection allowing for turning movements and pedestrian and bicycle crossings.
7	Cushman Avenue Extension	Two-lane roadway with parking along both sides of the roadway	Extend Cushman Avenue west towards West Morena Boulevard to create a "T" intersection. The new intersection should be a standard "T" intersection and should replace the southern Morena Boulevard split. Cushman Avenue should be constructed as a two-lane roadway with Class II bike lanes and sidewalks on either side.
8	"East" Morena Boulevard Extension from Cushman Avenue to Linda Vista Road	None	A two-lane collector roadway with center left-turn lane and Class II bike lanes on either side. The existing Morena Boulevard should be renamed "West Morena."
9	Intersection of Linda Vista Road and Morena Boulevard	None	Create a new intersection between the new "East" Morena Boulevard extension and Linda Vista Road.



#	Improvement	Existing Condition	Proposed Condition
10	Sherman Street Extension	Two lane roadway with parking along both sides that exists west of Morena Boulevard to its terminus west.	Extend Sherman Street east, from the existing Morena Boulevard to the extension of Morena Boulevard, as a two-lane roadway with a center left turn lane with pedestrian facilities and a Class III bicycle facility. East of the Morena Boulevard extension, Sherman Street should continue as a pedestrian and bicycle connection (Class I Multi Use Path) to the USD parking lot.
11	Dorcas Street Extension (South of West Morena Boulevard)	None	Extend Dorcas Street so that it continues south of West Morena Boulevard and reestablishes street grid.
12	New Street Extension (Cudahy Place to Vega Street)	None	Create new street south of, and parallel to, West Morena Boulevard to connect from Dorcas Street
13	Vega Street Extension	None	Extend Vega Street to continue south of West Morena Boulevard and reestablishes the street grid.
14	New Street Extension (Buenos Avenue to Dorcas Street)	None	Create a one-block segment between Buenos Avenue and Dorcas Street, parallel to West Morena Boulevard.
15	Street Vacation - Napa Street (Between Linda Vista Road and West Morena Boulevard)	Four lane roadway with no on-street parking nor bicycle facilities.	Vacated upon completion of the Morena Boulevard extension to Linda Vista Road.
16	Street Vacation - Morena Boulevard (Between West Morena Boulevard and Morena Place)	One lane roadway northbound, with buffered bike lane part of the way. 2 lanes southbound with bike lane.	Morena Boulevard between West Morena Boulevard and Morena Place should be vacated to allow the reestablishment of a street grid.
17	Street Vacation - Metro Street	Currently a cul-de-sac with one lane in each direction.	Metro Street should be vacated.